9:07:36 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 24, 2010
9:07 a.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 9:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Bryan

Oficer,
Pi erre,

Veterans Affairs (DWA);
Homrel and

Di vi sion of

DWA

But cher,
Fi nance Corporation
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC);
Deputy Comm ssi oner,

M ke Hawker, Co-Chair

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

Bill Thomas Jr., Vice-Chair
Al | an Aust er man

M ke Doogan

Anna Faircl ough

Neal Foster

Les Gara

Reggi e Joul e
M ke Kelly
Whodi e Sal non

Public Affairs
(AHFO) ;

Di rector,
Joe Dubl er,

Al aska Housi ng
Chi ef  Fi nanci al
McHugh
Departnment of Mlitary and
M chael O Hare, Deputy D rector,
security and Energency Managenent,

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Laurie Holte, Al aska Housing Fi nance Corporation

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1

03/24/10 9: 07 A M



HB 291 GUARANTEED REVENUE BONDS FOR VETERANS

HB 291 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a
"do pass" recomendation and with previously
publ i shed fiscal notes: FHL (OOG and FN2

(REV)

HB 292 GRANTS TO DI SASTER VI CTI M5
HB 292 was REPORTED out of Conmmittee with a
"do pass" recommendation and with a new

zero fiscal note.

9:07:44 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze presented the overview for the norning.

#hb291
HOUSE BI LL NO. 291

"An Act relating to the issuance of state-guaranteed
revenue bonds by the Al aska Housi ng Fi nance
Corporation to finance nortgages for qualifying
veterans; and providing for an effective date."

9:08: 22 AM

BRYAN BUTCHER, PUBLIC AFFAIRS DI RECTOR, ALASKA HOUSI NG
FI NANCE CORPORATION (AHFC) reported that this bill would
all ow Al askans to vote on approving AHFC to sell up to $600
mllion in bonds to fund the veteran's nortgage program He
provided a history of the federal program that allowed
states to sell tax exenpt debts to fund a program for
veterans that would be one half to five-eighths of a
percentage point below the nornmal taxable rate. Only five
states signed up originally: California, Texas, O egon,
W sconsin and Al aska. The eligible requirenent is to be in
the service 1977 or earlier and not out for |onger than 30
years. There were fewer veterans eligible as tinme has
passed. There were efforts to get Congress to lift this

time limt, but when the 1977 requirenent was finally
lifted the federal statute restricted the selling of only
$10 mllion in bonds to fund the program per year. The
number was lifted in 2008 to enable the selling of $100
mllion in bonds to fund the program There was a potenti al
to run out of funds in 2011. The Al aska Housing Finance
Corporation is still responsible for funding the program

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/ 24/ 10 9:07 A M



no state noney has had to go into the program The goal is
to get it on the ballot this year to continue with the
program

9:11:32 AM

Represent ati ve Doogan believed the State CGuaranteed Revenue
Bond is really a General Obligation Bond.

JOE DUBLER, CHI EF FI NANCI AL OFFI CER, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE
CORPORATI ON (AHFC) answered that the Revenue Bond relies
primarily upon sone source, in this case nortgage |oans, to
nmake the debt service. The statute requires that there be a
general obligation pledge behind that revenue stream wth
the state of Al aska behind this debt service. These bonds
have never gotten behind at this point.

Represent ati ve Doogan wondered why the voters are not being
told that. He enphasized that these are actually General
ol i gati on Bonds and should not be called by this new nane.
M. Butcher replied that in the question on the ballot it
will state that it is a general obligation of the state of
Al aska. The fiscal note is requesting $150,000 to provide
an education canpaign to all Alaskans to further define
what they are voting on. Representative Doogan relayed that
he wanted it on the record that these were Ceneral
bl igation Bonds. M. Butcher added that in January 2010,
Standards and Poor did a study of thirty four housing
finance agencies and the AHFC | atest bond issuance had the
| onest delinquency rate in the country.

9:15:39 AM

Vi ce-Chair Thonmas inquired on how many |oans veterans can
receive under this program M. Dubler replied one |oan at
a tinme and that nust be paid off before getting a new | oan.

Vice-Chair Thomas asked if the rural rate is lower than the
veteran's rates. M. Dubler answered that the rates are
about the sane at this tine.

9:17: 38 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze referred to the public information
canpaign and nentioned the heavy advertising done by the
Al aska Housing Finance Commttee pronoting various things
and wondered if educating the public on this bond could fit
into their existing program M. Butcher contended that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/ 24/ 10 9:07 A M



nost of the cost would go for nmamil outs to get the
information to all Al askans. Co-Chair Stoltze stated that
this bill is well supported and wondered if spending
$150, 000 was necessary.

9:18:58 AM

Representative Austerman asked if the Al aska National Guard
woul d be eligible. M. Dubler declared that if they served
any tour of duty and have an honorable discharge, they
would qualify. If they only served in the Alaska Nationa
Guard without being call up, then they would not qualify
for this program

Representative Foster referred to the Sponsor Statenent
where it nmentioned serving as a cadet in one the United
States mlitary academes. He questioned if that would
qual i fy.

9:20: 20 AM

LAURIE HOLTE, ALASKA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (via
tel econference) responded that the veteran nust have ful
time duty other than training.

9:20: 49 AM

Co- Chai r Hawker stressed that $150,000 was a |ot of noney
and under this fiscal note AHFC could spend the nobney any
way they wanted. He asked for assurance that all the noney
would be spent on this specific purpose and not other
things. M. Butcher enphasized that this fiscal note was
prepared before the operating budget. He expected the
actual dollar amount will be nore than $150,000. He assured
that AHFC can follow up on information on how the noney is
spent .

Co-Chair Hawker assured that he did not want to create a

| arger burden, but thought this mght be overkill. M.
Butcher remarked that this is different from the nornal
mar keting of their prograns. This will not be pronoted, but

only used to provide education on the bill.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked that AHFC does a lot of
communi cation through various neans and wondered if these
materials can be wused to conmunicate the informational
aspects of this bond package. M. Butcher indicated that he
woul d have to get back regarding how much is spent every

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/ 24/ 10 9:07 A M



year, but remarked an estimate would be about $200,000 to
$300, 000. Co- Chai r Stoltze comuni cat ed t hat many
| egislators mght use this in their election bids since
veteran's issues are popular in the state.

9:24:40 AM

Vi ce-Chair Thonmas noted that the qualified veterans in the
bill elimnate the Vietnam veterans. M. Butcher replied
that when the 1977 year was lifted, it was reduced to 25
years. Vi ce-Chair Thomas believed there was unfair

di scri m nati on agai nst Vietnam veterans since WNI veterans
were still eligible.

9:27:30 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony and referred to
the fiscal note.

Co- Chair Hawker MOVED to report HB 291 out of Conmittee
wi th individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

HB 291 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with previously published fiscal notes:
FH1L (O0G and FN2 (REV)

9: 29: 23 AM

#hb292
HOUSE BILL NO. 292

"An Act relating to grants to victins of a disaster in
this state; and providing for an effective date."

MCHUGH PI ERRE, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF M LI TARY
AND VETERANS AFFAIRS (DWA) presented an overview of the

bill. He spoke of the disaster |ast year in Eagle and other
communities along the Yukon River noting the disparity
bet ween t he i ndi vi dual assi st ance grants progr ams

established in 1977 conpared to the federal grant anount.
When a disaster is declared by the President of the United
States, FEMA issues individual assistance grants based on a
nunber suggested by the Consuner Price Index (CPl), which
| ast year was $30,300 per affected household. M. Pierre
noted that Alaska grants have not changed from $5000 and
this bill wuld nmake the anmount for state declared

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/ 24/ 10 9:07 A M



di sasters half of the federal anount. The maxi mum this year
woul d be $14, 950 per househol d af f ect ed.

M CHAEL O HARE, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, D VISION OF HOVELAND
SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, DWA, stressed that
there is a very rigorous process for disaster victins to
prove their loss. M. O Hare noted that his staff sets up a
| ocal disaster assistance center in affected comunities.
There is an involved application process wth extensive
verification that the loss is real and sustained during the
decl ared di saster incident.

9:33: 31 AM

Representative Gara asked if the Yukon River flooding was
the only disaster in past year. M. O Hare noted a decl ared
f eder al di saster in Kodi ak affecting critical
infrastructure. Representative Gara asked if this ©bill
woul d cover federal or state disasters. M. O Hare replied
that it is specific to state declared disasters. He noted
that in the 2009 spring flood, nobst comunities were
covered under the federal program but there were about 30
famlies that did not qualify. Al that could be provided
by the state was $5000. He reiterated that it is an
i nvol ved application process to collect funds.

Representative Gara asked for an exanple of sonmeone who
could not be helped enough. M. OMHare noted that there
have been individuals affected who did not fall under the
federal declaration. Representative Gara naintained that
there may still be people suffering from the 2009 flood

M. OHare replied that those who did not qualify are
resorting to other nethods. Representative Gara asked if
there would be any objection to going back to help those
from 2009 under this bill. M. O Hare declared the bill is
not retroactive. M. Butcher added that great steps have
been taken to help those in need to receive volunteer and
donations from the comunity. Representative Gara noted
there could still be people in need of help from that
flood. M. Pierre responded that was correct, but nost
needs have been nmet. The goal is get the individual back on
their feet, but not get them to the exact same point as
before the disaster. He clarified that there is no double
di ppi ng into bot h state and f eder al assi st ance.
Representative Gara asked for those that were unable to be
hel ped would there be any benefit or substantial cost to
making this bill retroactive to January 1, 2009.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/ 24/ 10 9:07 A M



9: 38: 57 AM

M. OHare replied that those that only qualified for the
smal | amount were hel ped by volunteer and |ocal groups. He
felt confortable that they have been helped as best as
possi bl e. Those individuals have not been nmade whole, but
they are recovering and progressing.

Representative Salnon inquired if the state pays any part
when a federal disaster is declared. M. OMHare replied
that federal regulations cite that the state is responsible
for paying 25 percent of the recovery costs. Representative
Sal ron asked if that was 25 percent of $30,000. M. O Hare
replied that would be correct. He added that it does not
just cover the public assistance grants. |If there is a
federally declared disaster the public and individual
assi stance grant covers a nuch | arger area.

9:41: 07 AM

Representative Sal non inquired about the bigger costs, such
as power and roads, and wondered how those costs were
det er m ned. M. OHare replied that they worked in
partnership with FEMA to arrive at the best economc
program to restore the critical infrastructure. He noted
that in Eagle there was an effort to get people out of the
way of future flooding paths. They have also worked wth
the | ocal power conpanies to not only restore services, but
prevent flood damage from happeni ng agai n.

9:42:18 AM
Representative Joule remarked that this bill helps the
departnment to react to a disaster a little better. He

wondered if there are resources to help better planning so
the need to react is not as great. M. O Hare reported that
the federal governnment does provide the division wth
pl anni ng specific noney from Honeland Security and FEMA to
go out into the communities to help them be better prepared
to respond. There have been many planning regiona
wor kshops i npl enented to nmake them better prepared.

M. Pierre used the 2009 spring floods as an exanple and
noted that staff was sent to villages before the flood hit
to see what the effect might be and help the conmunity to
be prepared.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/ 24/ 10 9:07 A M



Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony.
Co-Chair Stoltze referred to the new revised fiscal note.

9:45: 00 AM

M. Pierre explained the fiscal note changes. He noted that
the noney that goes to disaster grants cones out of the
di saster relief fund. The previous fiscal note showed an
i ncrease of $900,000 total that would be spent as a worst
case scenario. He noted that realistically only about 30
percent of the applicants get the maxi mum nmount so it wll
never be the $900,000 increase that was shown. He
enphasi zed that no new funds were needed at this time to be
appropriated for the bill fromthis commttee.

9:47:23 AM

Vice-Chair Thomas MOVED to report HB 292 out of Committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying new
fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

HB 292 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recormendation and with a new zero fiscal note.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 9:48 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/ 24/ 10 9:07 A M



